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The earliest portion of this venerable wooden structure, the section which
extends_from east to west measuring approximately 50' x 26', was originally
constructed in 1740. The galleries weré placed in either end of the building
at this time and the pulpit was located in the center 6f the north wall.
Apparently the vestry projecting from the north wall behind the pulpit

was part of the colonial fabrlc, but it has been rebuilt more than Once.

the~etitirch ™ a T shape. “Agallery was placed in the south end of this wing,
and in it was installed the church's celebrated Thnenburg pipe organ.

In 1850, the church underwent an extensive remodelling. The original box
péws weré removed and their panels were used as wainscoting and as railings
for the fronts of the three galleries. The original wine-glass pulpit
with its sounding board was also replaced The ce111ngs in the oldest
portlon of the building and in the first bay of the nave were lowered and
made flat. The second bay of the nave containlng ‘the organ gallery retains
its high-barrel vaulted ceiling. 1In-1885, the flat ceilings were adorned
with decorative frescoes of rich Victorian patterns by Guiseppe Oddenino
who did other such work in the area. Francis Staling of Hi¥fisonburg s -
believed to have executed painted decoration under the east and west
galleries and behind the pulpit in 1870; however, this work was removed

' in 1961,
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galleries are original; much of tﬁe other fabric such as rooflng,
clapboardlng, sash, and shutters has been renewed over the years, Much of
the fabric was reﬁTéEea in.1961 when the church underwent a major
renovation. During the renovation, the stone foundations wete strenghtened
with concrete block and veneered with brick. The narthex and present
vestry also date from this renovation. On the interior, the paneled reredos

and chancel furniture were installed.

SNOITLONALSNI

Despite the replacement of much of its material over the years, the church
retains its picturesque outline, and an aura. of age. Its appearance is
greatly enhanced by its beautiful setting on the top of a broad rise with a
backdrop of rolling fields, woodlands, and distant mountains. To the

south of the church lies its cemetery, first used in 1904, and enclosed by
a stone wall in 1930-31. A modern, colonial-style brick building housing
the church offices and Sunday school rooms is located to the east of the
church.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1740, Hebron, the first Lutheran congregatlon in Virginia and the South
built a church which Ras FH& distinction of being the oldest _house of
worship in continuous use by Lutherans in the New World. This structure --
the second church to be built on the site-~is one of the few surviving
frame-colonial churches in Virginia.

The first Lutheran immigrants came to Virginia in 1717 to work at Governor
Spotswood's frontier-mining community of Germanna. Others of their
co-religionists followed--these were scattered, as indentured servants,
over the same northern-piedmont region. In 1725, most of the approximately
sixty Lutheran families in Virginia removed to the .Robinson River Valley.
There: "at the very border of the Country under the Great Ridge of
Mountains," they formed the congregation and community of Hebron. Worship
sexrvices were begun in 1726 in their roughly-built "German Chapel."

Hebron enjoyed some support from Europe; but the congregationwas itself
prospering.. The "German Chapel’ gave way to a larger, handsome church

~-=- the earliest portion of the present building--by August 1740. A school
house was added, and School regularly cénducted, from about the same time.
At the end of the century, the present south addition to the church was
constructed.

| addition.

Hebron's famous pipe organ,

Tannenburg of Lititz, Pennsylvania, was installed 1n,the gallery of this

A rematkable survival,

built around 1800 by David

the organ has been in continuous use
since its installatjon dnd remains almost completely unaltered, having
its original pipes, c¢ase; keyboard and stops. Among other valued objects
belonging to the congregation are several articles of early-eighteenth
century English pewter, and a German-made gsilver chalice and paten from
the same era. This communion set is the oldest of any Lutheran congregation
in the South. '
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_As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law’
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion

in the National Register and certify that jt has been )
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